






































































































































































 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

1 

 

 

Chewelah 

School 

District 

Strategic 

Improvement Plan 2022-2027 

Chewelah School District Promise 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

 
 

 

School District: Chewelah School District  Plan Reviewed by staff on: 

 Plan Reviewed by staff on: 

Date Completed: April 2022 Plan Reviewed by staff on: 

Date Board Approved: April 20, 2022  

Strategic Plan Steering Committee Jason Perrins, Erin Dell, Shawn Anderson, Julie 

Price, Clover Joyce, Betty Myers, Kevin Herda, 

Julie Sautter, Kallie Tilla, Jennifer Watts, Clay 

Jeanerette, Jason Tapia, Ella Joyce, Paul Sety, 

Shirley Baker, Chelsea Boswell, Janet 

Mclaughlin, Alicia Sobosky, Amanda Katzer, Ed 

Anegon, Sarah Gregory, Laura Watson, Paige 

Campbell, Clover Joyce, Rhonda Christian, Kelly 

Mccrae, Mailie Masuda, Judy Bean 



 

2 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

2 

Chewelah School District Commitments (2022) 

Student Learning 

Student learning is the core of our existence. Our primary responsibility is to ensure our students have the skills, knowledge, character, and wisdom 

to match their life and career goals. 

Exceptional Professionals 

Our employees are our most important asset in achieving our purpose of student learning. 

Safe Environments 

Staff and students will thrive in achieving their best performances in safe learning places and situations. 

Dynamic Programs 

Our students are provided the best experiences through programs and services that are unique, effective, meaningful, and specific. 

Program Designed Facilities 

Our facilities are designed to match the learning and to enhance programs & activities for our schools and community. 

District Community Summary 
Chewelah’s first brick schoolhouse was constructed in 1901. It was a two-story structure with eight classrooms called the Union School, because 

Chewelah was not incorporated and officially named until 1903. It was located on what is now the west lawn of the Chewelah Ci ty Hall. The 

continuing rapid growth of the town’s population to nearly 900 citizens forced to build a twin schoolhouse in 1907 that was attached to the first 

one. The original Jenkins High School was constructed in 1910 on property donated by Colonel David Jenkins when the city’s population was over 

1,600 residents 

The second Jenkins High School was built in 1928 on property just west of the original high school, and the old high school became a junior high 

school. By this time, students from several of the small outlying schools were now being bussed to Chewelah. This second high school included a 

gym on the bottom floor, with a balcony surrounding it on the second floor for spectators, and a spacious auditorium above it on the third floor. In 



 

3 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

3 

1952, an addition to the two separate buildings was built to link the two structures together, adding a cafeteria and kitchen, a library, and six 

classrooms. This new section was jointly used by high school and junior high students. Two years later, in 1954, the original Jenkins High School was 

completely renovated, with the new Gaiser Gymnasium added to the north end of the building. 

Student enrollment was still growing, and a third Jenkins High School that was completed in 1976. At this time, the 1928 high  school was razed and 

the remaining building was converted into a middle school for grades six, seven, and eight. 

The new Chewelah Grade School was built during the Great Depression in 1938 with federal funding from the Works Progress Administration. As 

student enrollment continued to grow, the school district had to rent classrooms in the nearby unoccupied St. Mary’s School for grade school 

students. This eventually necessitated the construction of the current Gess Elementary School in 1983 on land donated by next door neighbor Ernie 

Gess. The building currently houses grades kindergarten through sixth grades. Additions were made in 1991and 1993 to add classrooms. 

Jenkins MS/HS has undergone additions and renovations since 1976: Rooms added in 1978 (current MS portion of Jenkins); Woodshop added in 

1982, and Roof 2010. New Roof in 2010 as well as Fire and safety replacement. 

The Chewelah School District is a Title 1 school District. Our student population is approximately 750 students (2022). The District employs 

approximately 56 certificated staff and 58 classified support staff. The leadership team is comprised of one Superintendent, Transportation 

Supervisor, Maintenance and Operations Supervisor, IT Supervisor, Head Cook Supervisor, half-time SPED Director, half-time Athletic Director, 

Director of Student Services, ALE Principal, Elementary Principal, Secondary (MS/HS) Principal and an Assistant Principal that serves the elementary 

and secondary school. The CSD runs and manages its own transportation bus fleet.  

District Supportive Data 
See appendix A for General Budget Information.  

See Appendix B for Strategic Planning Steering Committee work completed April 2022 

  



 

4 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

4 

 

Strategic Plan Goals 2022-27 

There are two goals in four categories. The categories are: 

Teaching & Learning 

Chewelah School Culture 

Student Services 

Facilities and Finance 

 

Teaching & Learning Goal #1 :   Write scope and sequence for all content areas by June of 2023 
CSD is committed to Student Learning & Exceptional Professionals 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

Teachers will be trained 

to develop/write scope 

and sequence of their 

curriculum. A template 

will be provided for all 

Completion date is June 

2023.  

Superintendent and 

Building Principals 

ESD 101 will provide 

support and training. 

Funds to pay staff will 

come from general 

fund, ESSER and Title. 

Principals will monitor 

teacher progress during the 

year and will check 

completion of teacher work 

in June of 2023.  

 



 

5 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

5 

teachers to follow and 

complete. 

Staff will complete Scope 

and Sequence documents 

Teacher will be provided 

time and support during 

the year to achieve this 

goal. Teacher will work 

alone and/or in groups to 

write scope and sequence 

for their subject areas or 

grade levels. 

2022-23 School Year CSD Teachers 

 

Principals will monitor and 

support teachers through 

the process. 

Teachers will be 

provided paid time after 

school as often as 

needed to complete 

their scope and 

sequence. Most work 

will be done after 

school. Feedback will be 

provided by 

administration 

Copies of Scope and 

Sequences from all teachers 

will be collected and 

organized by 

administration. Feedback 

will be given. 

 

Funding: List and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

1. Curriculum, ESSER, Title budgets- $25,000 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



 

6 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

6 

Teaching & Learning Goal #2 :   Develop District wide professional development plan and 

evaluate the plan each school year. 
 

Activities 

 

Timeframe 

 

Lead(ers) 

 

Resources  Measures  

 

District Employees PD Needs 

Assessment Survey. (Goal of 

participation: minimum of 

60% survey). To be 

administered each May of 

current school year. 

2023-24 School Year Superintendent, Principals 

and Building PD 

committees. 

 Forms Survey Software Survey results. Feedback 

from employee leadership 

groups. 

 

 

Planning and organizing PD 

with Building Principals and 

teachers each May-June for 

the following year.  

 

District wide PD will be 

published each June for the 

following school year. 

Adjustments will be made in 

August and during the year 

as needs are identified. 

Ongoing meetings during 

school year to schedule and 

organize PD according to 

teacher professional needs 

and student performance 

results 

Building Principals, 

Teacher leadership groups 

Building PD 

Committees 

Budget reviews for 

funding 

School Improvement 

Plans progress 

Survey feedback 

TPEP 

 

Student academic success 

and teacher performance. 

Teacher feedback and 

input. PD needs identified 

in School Improvement 

Plans. 



 

7 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

7 

Evaluation of PD results.  

1. Review of student 

performance and 

learning progress 

2. PD Survey results 

3. PD Committee 

feedback. 

Annually- April-May Building Principals, 

Teacher leadership groups 

Building PD 

Committees 

Budget reviews for 

funding 

School Improvement 

Plans progress 

Survey feedback 

TPEP 

 

Student academic success 

and teacher performance. 

 

Effectiveness of PD plan 

will be evaluated each 

May. Effective PD will be 

determined by survey 

results, student 

achievement in areas 

where training has been 

given or is lacking. 

Implementation of PD Plan.  Annual planning with board 

approval each June 

Superintendent & 

Principals with input and 

support from employee 

leadership teams 

Budget and feedback 

from staff and admin 

team 

Teacher improvement as 

identified by principals 

and teachers (TPEP). 

Student achievement 

improvement areas as 

identified in assessment 

scores (MAP, iReady, 

District curriculum exams. 

 

Funding: Please list and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

1. Title, ESSER and General budget 

2. .Levy Funds- PD 

 



 

8 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

8 

 

 

Chewelah Culture #1 :   Improve transition support to students and staff new to the District 2022-

24 
 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

Building Orientations 

Development Pan: Each year 

new staff are hired and 

welcomed. There are District 

Orientation, Principal 

Orientation and job skill 

training and Orientations. 

Orientations share building 

norms and culture. Safety and 

building maintenance. 

Counseling Services for staff 

and students. Discipline and 

student handbook. Staff 

Handbook 

Each year and through the 

year (ongoing). 

Main District Office staff, 

Principals and 

Superintendent 

 

District budget 

ESD support services 

and training 

Chewelah Staff/mentors 

Retention of new staff- 

longevity 

Survey feedback 

Professional growth of 

new staff. 

CSD Mentoring Program (ESD 

101) 

a. Certificated 

Each year with new hires Superintendent and 

Principals and peer 

mentors 

ESD Survey feedback and ESD 

feedback. 



 

9 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

9 

b. Classified 

Buildings will develop a “new” 

student orientation and 

mentor program for new 

students. 

2022-24 Building Leadership 

School Counselors 

Associated Student Body 

leadership and students 

Staff leadership, 

knowledge, experience, 

and skill 

Programs for students 

Student Feedback. Parent 

feedback. CEE Survey 

Develop a transition and 

support plan for students 

Transitioning into new 

buildings or key grade levels. 

(TK, Kinder, 6th to 7th and 8th 

to 9th) 

June of 2023 Building Principals 

Building leadership staff 

ASB 

CSD employees Stakeholder feedback. 

 

Funding: List and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

 

1. Training support services ESD 101 

2. ASB Budget 

 

3. Levy and General budget-  

4. iGrant funds; TPEP, Title and LAP - $6,000 

 

 



 

10 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

10 

Chewelah Culture #2 :   Continue ongoing efforts to improve communication with stakeholders 

2022-23 
 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

Review and modify building 

communication plans created 

by Principals (May 2022 

Retreat) 

Fall of 2022 Superintendent and 

Building Principals 

Time and practice Surveys where parents, 

teachers and parents can 

share feedback.  

 

Survey employees on 

communication effectiveness 

Annual surveys of staff to 

obtain feedback on 

communication 

Superintendent, building 

principals and District 

committee 

NA Improvement in trust, 

planning, being informed, 

feeling part of a 

community shared by 

stakeholders. 

Develop and try other means 

of communication: ie. Focus 

Groups and community 

outreach to 

agencies/associations 

3-4 a year during the 2022-

23 School Year 

Board and 

Superintendent  

Time and communication 

to public/stakeholders 

Parent feedback 

Strengthen and continue with 

current communication 

strategies that work. 

2022-23 CSD Leadership Team 

and District Office.  

Newsletters, Emails, 

Planning events, Radio, 

Focus groups, Sup Scoop, 

Surveys and comments 

following communication 



 

11 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

11 

Building Offices and 

building leadership 

teams. 

Board of Directors 

staff meetings, PLC, Board 

Meetings,  

 

Funding: List and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

1. District website and resources- $3,500 

2. Levy and General budget- $10,000 

 

 

Student Services #1: Train CSD employees in Crisis Management (mental and physical)- 2022-23 
 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

Professional Development 

by Mental Health counselors 

will be provided to 

employees 2-3 times during 

the school year. 

2022-24 School years Principals will schedule 

times for training with 

staff with Mental Health 

Counselors 

Dragon Fly Mental health 

contract 

Feedback from staff and 

completion of trainings by 

staff. Teacher confidence in 

supporting students in 

coping with mental health 

conflicts. 

 



 

12 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

12 

 

Funding: Please list and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

1. ESSER FUNDS $3-5,000 

 

 

Student Services #2: Deliver mental health counseling to students on a regular basis. 
 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

Contract with Mental Health 

agency 

2022-24 Admin and school 

counselors 

ESSER Funds 

Dragon Fly Counseling 

Admin, counselors will 

monitor progress. Monitor 

and evaluate factors such 

as student attendance, on 

track to graduate, reducing 

conflicts, or student 

engagement in school with 

individuals will be 

calculated according to the 

individual student.  

Provide mental health 

counselor to students. 

Identify student needs, meet 

their needs and build 

independence. Account for 

2022-24 District Admin and 

School Counselors will 

coordinate student 

needs and resources 

Mental Health Therapist 

and ESSER Funds 

Number of students 

improving in attendance 

and participation in school.  



 

13 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

13 

mental health conflicts and 

provide skills to help 

students be independent. 

with Mental Health 

Counselor. 

Students exiting out of 

mental health support 

 

Funding: Please list and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

1. ESSER funds (120k- 2022-23, 100k 2023-24) 

 

Facilities and Finance #1: Develop 10-12 year facilities Plan by the end of 2023 
 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

4-6 Meetings with District 

facility committee 

2022-23 Jason Tapia and Jason 

Perrins and committee 

Community Support. 

The Chewelah SD has an 

experienced 

maintenance crew. 

Committee members 

are experienced 

contractors 

ESD provides facility 

reports 

OSPI 

Long range plan prepared 

and delivered to the board 

by June of 2023 

 

Minutes of meetings and 

list of feedback 

Input from stakeholders 

and trusted resources such 

as ESD and OSPI 



 

14 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

14 

Communication to 

stakeholders and community 

resources for feedback and 

support 

2022-23 SD Administration Social media, focus 

groups, publications. 

 

ESD 101: Facility Department 2022-23 Jason Tapia and Jason 

Perrins 

Provide facility 

assessment and 

consultation for the CSD 

Obtain helpful information 

for the committee to make 

decisions 

McKinstry Construction 2022-23 Jason Tapia and Jason 

Perrins 

Provide facility 

consultations 

Obtain helpful information 

for the committee to make 

decisions 

 

Funding: Please list and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

1. No expenses anticipated at this time 

 

Facilities and Finance #2: Educate community on facility needs and long-range planning 

following development of Long-range Facility Plan 
 

Activities Timeframe Lead Resources Measures 

Community plan: explore 

and identify best means to 

educate and share with 

2022-24 Superintendent, 

Maintenance Supervisor, 

Media options: Radio, 

newsletters, website, 

Support on levies and 

bonds 



 

15 

Chewelah School District #36 

“We teach to ready our younger generations” 

-Chewelah Promise 2022-2027   

 

15 

community. Community in-

person meetings, letters, 

The Independent, Flyers, 

radio, etc.   

School Board, and Facility 

committee 

Facebook, newspaper, 

community meetings 

Feedback from community 

Evaluate the effectiveness of 

communication 

District Facilities 

Committee consulting: Will 

provide guidance to how 

to best education the 

community. 

2023-23 Jason Tapia and Jason 

Perrins 

Time for meetings and 

planning 

Communication outreach 

with community options 

and opportunities  

 

Funding: Please list and describe funding amount(s) and source(s) associated with the above activities.  

NA 

 



 
 

1 
 

 

                   

2021-2022 
Parent/Student Handbook 

 
Principal     Shawn Anderson, ext. 2001 

Assistant Principal   Tom Skok, ext. 2003 

Athletic Director    Shirley Baker, ext. 3107 

CTE Director     Erin Dell, ext. 2129 

Counselor     Vanessa Bigler, ext. 2010 

Jr/Sr High School Web Site   http://www.chewelah.k12.wa.us 

Jr/Sr High School Office Phone   (509) 685-6800, ext. 2025 

Office Fax number    (509) 935-9206 

  

  
Jr/Sr High School 

 

http://www.chewelah.k12.wa.us/


 
 

2 
 

Table of Contents 
PRINCIPAL WELCOME LETTER ........................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS .................................................................................................................................. 5 

ADMINISTRATION ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

2021-2022 STUDENT ASB OFFICERS .......................................................................................................... 6 

STUDENT HANDBOOK REVIEW COMMITTEE ................................................................................................ 6 

NONDISCRIMINATION FOR SCHOOL PUBLICATIONS .................................................................................... 7 

AND PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS ................................................................................................................... 7 

STUDENT INFORMATION .............................................................................................................................. 8 

EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSURES ................................................................................................. 12 

FEES ...................................................................................................................................................... 12 

FIELD TRIPS (Due to COVID-19, field trips may be reduced, eliminated or modified.) .................. 13 

FOOD AND DRINK .............................................................................................................................. 13 

GUIDANCE & COUNSELING ............................................................................................................ 13 

GYM USE ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

HALL PASSES ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

HOMEWORK MAKEUP ....................................................................................................................... 14 

ILLNESS AT SCHOOL ......................................................................................................................... 14 

LEAVING DURING SCHOOL HOURS/CAMPUS POLICY ............................................................. 14 

LIBRARY/MEDIA CENTER ................................................................................................................ 14 

LOCK DOWN ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

LOCKERS .............................................................................................................................................. 14 

LOST & FOUND ................................................................................................................................... 15 

LUNCH AND CAFETERIA GUIDELINES ........................................................................................ 15 

THE MCKINNEY VENTO ACT (TMVA) ............................................................................................ 15 

MOMENT OF SILENCE ...................................................................................................................... 15 

PARENTAL ACCESS TO STUDENT RECORDS (FERPA) .............................................................. 16 

PARKING LOT ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

PERSONAL PROPERTY/VALUABLES .............................................................................................. 17 

PUBLIC DISPLAY OF AFFECTION (PDA) ...................................................................................... 17 

SKATEBOARD OR ROLLERBLADES, BIKES AND SCOOTERS ................................................... 17 

STUDENT COUNCIL ........................................................................................................................... 17 



 
 

3 
 

TARDINESS .......................................................................................................................................... 17 

VISITORS/GUESTS .............................................................................................................................. 17 

WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS ............................................................................. 18 

ACADEMIC INFORMATION .......................................................................................................................... 18 

COURSE SELECTION/SCHEDULE CHANGES .............................................................................. 18 

DROPPING COURSES ......................................................................................................................... 18 

FINAL EXAMS...................................................................................................................................... 18 

GRADES: (Grading scale and GPA) .................................................................................................... 18 

GRADES: (Progress Reports)................................................................................................................ 18 

GRADES: (Report Cards) ...................................................................................................................... 18 

HONORS AT COMMENCEMENT FOR THE GRADUATING SENIORS ...................................... 19 

RUNNING START ................................................................................................................................ 19 

TECHNOLOGY/INTERNET ................................................................................................................ 19 

TEXTBOOKS ......................................................................................................................................... 19 

TESTING ............................................................................................................................................... 19 

PSAT .................................................................................................................................................... 19 

SAT: On-site twice yearly. Go to Collegeboard.org for more information. ........................................ 19 

ACT ...................................................................................................................................................... 19 

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES AND CLUBS .............................................................................................. 19 

YEAR-AROUND ACTIVITIES ............................................................................................................ 20 

FFA ........................................................................................................................................................ 20 

NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY ........................................................................................................... 20 

FEES, STUDENT BODY ...................................................................................................................... 21 

SPORTS .................................................................................................................................................. 21 

SPORTSMANSHIP ............................................................................................................................... 21 

DISCIPLINE PHILOSOPHY AND PLAN ........................................................................................................... 21 

 

  



 
 

5 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Kyra Rolstad, Bryan Tidwell, TO Bakken, Judy Bean, Dan Krouse 

SUPERINTENDENT 
Jason Perrins 

JENKINS JR/SR/ HIGH STAFF 

ADMINISTRATION  
Anderson, Shawn   Principal    2001   sanderson@chewelahk12.us 
Skok, Tom  Assistant Principal   2003   tskok@chewelahk12.us 
Baker, Shirley   Athletic Director   3107   sbaker@chewelahk12.us  
 

FACULTY/STAFF   Position   Phone Ext. E-Mail 
 

Baker, Shirley                           Language Arts   3110   sbaker@chewelahk12.us 
Bennetch, Bethany   Speech    4012   bbennetch@chewelahk12.us 
Bigler, Vanessa   Counselor  2010   vbigler@chewelahk12.us 
Boswell, Chelsi   Math    2114   cboswell@chewelahk12.us 
Breiter, Kassi   Nurse    4015   kbreiter@chewelahk12.us 
Brown, Sheri  English   3128  sbrown@chewelahk12.us 
Burnell, Lisa   Custodian     lburnell@chewelahk12.us 
Campbell, Paige  History   2104  pcampbell@chewelahk12.us 
Christian, Rhonda   Librarian    2200   rchristian@chewelahk12.us 
Forsberg, Ryan   Science    3103   rforsberg@chewelahk12.us 
French, Kirsten   Language Arts   2108   kfrench@chewelahk12.us 
Gilreath, Ann   Para-Educator     agilreath@chewelahk12.us 
Greenfield, Ross  Science   2118                           rgreenfield@chewelahk12 
Johnstone, David   Math    3106   djohnstone@chewelahk12.us 
Kernan, Maddie   Language Arts   3128   mkernan@chewelahk12.us 
King, Kevin   Custodian   3020 VM  kking@chewelahk12.us 
Lee, Jacob  Math   2113  jlee@chewelahk12.us 
Lehman, Alan  Para-Educator    alehman@chewelahk12.us 
Lehrbas, Rosa   Special Education   3125   rlehrbas@chewelahk12.us 
Levchenko, Zachary                 Technology-Director      1010  zlevchenko@chewelahk12.us 
Markel, Aubrey   Agriculture/FFA   2102   amarkel@chewelahk12.us 
Nelson, Jeannie   Para-Educator     jnelson@chewelahk12.us     
Oltman, Ryan   Special Education                   2101   roltman@chewelahk12.us 
Pettigrew, Lindsey   Cook      lpettigrew@chewelahk12.us 
Sawyer, Cheryl  Office Secretary  2002  csawyer@chewelahk12.us 
Schulz, Mikhaila  History     mschulz@chewelahk12.us 

Registrar                                     2009   
Sheppard, Carrie   ASB Bookkeeper   2006   csheppard@chewelahk12.us 
Shoemaker, Jerome CTE/Shop Teacher  2121  jshoemaker@chewelahk12.us 
Skok, Tom   Support Services   2113   tskok@chewelahk12.us 
Slater, Tim   CTE    2115   tslater@chewelahk12.us 
Gregory, Sarah   Title    4121   sgregory@chewelahk12.us 
Trudeau, Geri   Para-Educator     gtrudeau@chewelahk12.us 
Trudeau, Joe  Band/History    jtrudeau@chewelahk12.us 
Watts, Jennifer   Math    2117   jwatts@chewelahk12.us   
Youngblood, Jenny   Science    2103   jyoungblood@chewelahk12.us 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:cboswell@chewelahk12.us
mailto:lburnell@chewelahk12.us
mailto:kking@chewelahk12.us
mailto:rlehrbas@chewelahk12.us


 
 

6 
 

 

 

2021-2022 STUDENT ASB OFFICERS 

 

Senior High School: 

President: Elijah Fazio 
Vice President: Brooke Bennett 

Treasurer: Bindi Bennett 
Secretary: Caelyn Beck 

Sergeant at Arms: Avi Sahota 
School Board Representative: Keona Ross 

ASB Advisor: TBD 
 

Junior High School: 

President: Frankie Sety 
Vice President: Kannon Sheppard 

Secretary: Simi Sahota 
Treasurer: Grady Skok 

 
 
 

 

STUDENT HANDBOOK REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 

Parents:  JJSHS Parent Advisory Committee 
 
Staff:  Shawn Anderson, Shirley Baker, Tom Skok, Maddie Kernan, Carrie Sheppard 
 
Chewelah School District #36 Board Members:  Judy Bean, TO Bakken, Dan Krouse, Bryan Tidwell and 
Steve Phillips 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

7 
 

 

NONDISCRIMINATION FOR SCHOOL PUBLICATIONS 

AND PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
The Chewelah School District does not discriminate in any programs or activities on the basis of sex, 
race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, veteran or military status, sexual orientation, gender 
expression or identify, disability, or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal and provides equal 
access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups. The following employees have been 
designated to handle questions and complaints of alleged discrimination: 

 
 
Title IX Coordinator 
Shirley Baker 
PO Box 47 
Chewelah, WA 99109 
509-685-6800, Ext. 8-3107 
sbaker@chewelahk12.us 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Section 504/ADA Coordinator 
Sarah Gregory 
PO Box 47 
Chewelah, WA 99109 
509-685-6800, Ext. 8-4121 
sgregory@chewelahk12.us 
 
 
 

 
 
Compliance Coordinator for State Law (RCW 28A.640/28A.642) 
Jason Perrins 

PO Box 47 
Chewelah, WA 99109 
509-685-6800, Ext. 8-2001 
jperrins@chewelahk12.us 
 

 
The Chewelah School District will also take steps to assure that national origin persons who lack English language 
skills can participate in all education programs, services and activities. For information regarding translation 
services or transitional bilingual education programs, contact Renee Jungblom 685-6800 

 

 
CHEWELAH SCHOOL DISTRICT #36 MISSION STATEMENT 

“We teach to ready our younger generations.” 

 
 In partnership with parents and community, the Chewelah School District provides a well-
rounded education in a safe and secure environment, through focused quality programs and 
collaborative teaching and learning experiences for all learners, to maximize personal achievement as 
productive members of society. 
 

 

 



 
 

8 
 

HISTORY OF JENKINS JR/SR HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Before the year 1879, a school was not known to the settlers of what is now, Chewelah (derived 
from a Native American word). A small log building served the residents of the area until growth 
demanded a larger building in 1885. By 1910 a high school stood where the old middle school gym now 
stands. A newer high school was constructed in the 1930s with additions in the 1950s. This school 
served high school students until the current high school housed its first classes in 1977. Photographs of 
past graduating classes from 1939 to present line the halls of our school. 
 

 

JENKINS JR/SR HIGH SCHOOL MISSION STATEMENT 

 

“Create a safe, positive learning community to prepare productive, responsible citizens.” 
 

 

STUDENT INFORMATION 
ABSENCES 

 
Good attendance is essential for the maximum education benefit and mastery of the programs provided for 
students. Continuity of instruction and student participation are principles which underlie and give purpose to the 
requirement of compulsory school attendance. 
 

Students and parents are responsible for complying with District policy and the compulsory attendance laws of 
Washington State (Board Policy 3121 and Procedure 3122). To that end, students are required to be in attendance 
and on time for their assigned classes when school is in session. In addition, students must check out with the 
office if they are leaving campus with parent permission prior to the end of the school day. Students will not be 
granted permission to leave early without approval of parent/guardian by phone or verifiable note. Failure to 
follow proper checkout procedures will result in disciplinary action. 
 
Attendance Expectations  
Attendance will be taken daily for all students each period. Students are expected to remain in their scheduled 
class for the duration of the class period.  Attendance is extremely important. Our district is planning to be in a full-
year of in-person learning.  
 
If the Chewelah School District or Jenkins is participating in remote learning, due to state or local requirements, a 
remote learning absence is defined as a student not participating in planned instructional activities on a scheduled 
remote learning day. Student participation, to be counted as present, may include, but not be limited to:  

• Daily logins to Canvas  

• Daily interactions with teacher to acknowledge attendance (including messages, emails, phone calls, or 
Zoom meetings)  

• Evidence of participation in a task or assignment.  

If a student does not engage or demonstrate participation in required work, the student would be marked absent. 
For our non-internet connected students, if assignments are not turned in as outlined in the individual remote 
learning plan, their attendance for the week would be marked as unexcused.  

Parents or guardians will still need to notify the school office if their student is sick, has an appointment, etc.  

If your student is sick, or shows symptoms of Covid-19, please do not send your student to school.   



 
 

9 
 

1. Do they have any of the following symptoms that are not caused by another condition? 

• Fever (100.4 F) or chills  

• Cough  

• Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing  

• Unusual fatigue  

• Muscle or body aches  

• Headache  

• Unusual fatigue  

• Muscle or body aches  

• Headache  

• Recent loss of taste or smell   

• Sore throat  

• Congestion or runny nose  

• Nauseas or vomiting  

• Diarrhea  
2. Have they been in close contact with anyone with confirmed Covid-19?   

3. Have they had a positive Covid -19 test for active virus in the past 10 days?   

4. Within the past 14 days, has a public health or medical professional told you to self-monitor, self-isolate, 
or self-quarantine because of concerns about Covid infection?  

5. If you answered yes to any of the above questions in 1-4 your student will need to stay home for student 
and staff health and safety, this includes attending partial school or any entry to the buildings. Please 
contact the office attendance secretary Renee Whitley if this situation arises.  

 

EXCESSIVE EXCUSED ABSENCES 
In certain circumstances a student’s excessive absences will have a negative impact on their grades and possible 

failure of courses. Students with chronic excused absences may be required to attend a Community Engagement 

Board hearing and abide by the board’s recommendations for improved attendance. 

TRUANCY/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES 
Truancy/unexcused absence is a violation of law and district rules and will result in disciplinary action and possible 
court actions. Some examples of truancy are skipping class, being absent without parental and school permission, 
and failure to attend required scheduled assemblies. 
 
Along with disciplinary action that will be imposed as a result of truancy, students will not be allowed credit for any 
work missed during the period of truancy. Unexcused absences are those not defined by law or policy or those 
without an excuse statement provided by the parent.  
 

ACCIDENTS 
When an accident occurs, it must be reported at once to the teacher or staff member in charge, who will then 
report it to the office and any other necessary authorities within 24 hours. Proper medical referrals are made when 
necessary. First-Aid kits are in the office, physical education department, and vocational building. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE/BUSINESS HOURS 
The office at JJSHS is open from 7:45 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. every day school is in session. It is important that students 
and visitors use the window provided for matters needed in the office. The Principal, Assistant Principal and 
Athletic Director offices are in the main office. The main part of the school is closed at 4:00 p.m. daily and is not 
accessible to students unless under the direct supervision of a teacher or advisor. 
 

ANIMALS AT SCHOOL 
Students are not allowed to bring pets or other animals to school without permission from the principal. This 

includes leaving pets in vehicles during the day. 



 
 

10 
 

ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY (ASB) 
The Associated Student Body (ASB) is comprised of all Jenkins Jr/Sr High School students. Student Council includes 
all elected officers of classes, clubs, activities and the ASB officers. High School (9-12) and Junior High (7-8) have 
separate student council officers and separate student council meetings. 
 

ASB CARDS 
Students may purchase an ASB card for $35.00 for high school and $30.00 for junior high. The ASB card is required 
to participate in all sports, band, theater, and clubs. The ASB card allows students to attend all varsity home events 
(except playoffs) for free and attend dances at a reduced cost. Pictures for cards will be taken shortly after the 
start of the school year. All students must have their picture taken.  If you are a Free or Reduced Meal participant 
there is no charge for your ASB Card this year. Jenkins received a state grant which will pay for the fee.   
 

ATHLETIC PARTICIPATION WAIVERS 
Waivers for Physical Education graduation requirements will be granted for each student athlete who completes a 
sport season in good standing.  
 

BACKPACKS 
Students cannot bring backpacks into their classrooms during the 2021/22 school year in an effort to effectively 

social distance.  

BUS REGULATIONS 
Riding the school bus is a privilege. Improper conduct on the bus is addressed in CSD Policy and Procedure 3241. 
Only students who are regularly assigned to a bus may ride that bus. Others must have a note of permission signed 
by a JJSHS office staff member. Students are to go immediately to their bus as soon as they are dismissed from 
school in the afternoon. JJSHS bus riders may not leave campus after arriving at school. 
 

CAMERAS 
Jenkins Jr/Sr High School is equipped with video only security cameras throughout the school. These cameras are 
intended to help provide a safe environment for students and staff at our school. 
 

CAMPUS POLICY 
Students who have all their classes in the junior/senior high school building are to remain on campus for the entire 
school day. Students must stay on campus once they arrive in the morning. Exceptions to this policy are for pre-
arranged appointments, using the proper checkout procedure, and during lunchtime when the campus is open to 
students in grades 10-12. This lunch privilege is afforded to students as a measure of trust and responsibility. 
Individual students may lose open campus privileges or campus may be closed to all students if there are concerns 
from staff or community members regarding student safety or behavior. Sophomores will need to have written 
permission from parents in order to have open campus. 
 
It is the policy of Jenkins Jr/Sr High School to offer equal access to Running Start and Chewelah Quartzite Learning 
students in all areas. Students who are scheduled for less than six (6) periods per day must avoid loitering on 
campus during non-scheduled time. This includes the halls, gym, shop, or other areas. If a student is enrolled in a 
class and has teacher permission, he or she may stay in that class to work on a school project under the 
supervision of that teacher. Violators will be subject to discipline and/or be placed in a full schedule of classes. 
Students who are dependent on bus transportation to and from school should be enrolled full time. Running Start 
students with one period in between two class at Jenkins will be allowed to stay on campus with arrangements 
from the principal. 
 

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION (CTE) PROGRAM 
CTE courses are required for graduation. These classes include areas where safety is of prime concern. Due to 
liability and safety concerns, facilities are only available for use by students who are enrolled in specific CTE 
classes. Work in these shop areas is for the purpose of educational use only. Work can be done for others by an 
enrolled student, during their scheduled class time, and only with the CTE instructor’s approval. 
 

 



 
 

11 
 

CELL PHONES/ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

• Cell phones will be silenced and out of sight during class periods unless specifically allowed by the classroom 
teacher for educational purposes. Educational purposes may include but not be limited to using the phone to 
upload or download assignments, etc. 

• If a student’s cell phone becomes a disruption to the learning environment the teacher will hold a conference 
with the student and parent/guardian. If the behavior continues, the second step will be a disciplinary referral. 
If a student is using an electronic device or cell phone to disrupt the learning environment or to harm others 
their cell phone privileges may be revoked by the administration. There will be a behavior plan developed 
which will be signed by the offending student and parent/guardian. 

• Students may use their cell phones before and after school, during passing time (for grades 9-12) and during 
lunch. 

• A telephone is available in the office for students with permission from office staff. 
 

CHANGE OF ADDRESS PROCEDURES 
Parents/students must contact the registration secretary as soon as possible if an address or telephone number 
change occurs during the school year. Parents may make changes on their Family Access Skyward account. 
 

DANCES/SOCIAL EVENTS 
High School Dances: (Due to COVID-19 restrictions, dances may not be available in the 2021/22 school year.) 
 

• Jenkins High School students (grades 9-12) may attend dances with a guest of high school age who attends 
another school after completion of the Guest Approval Form. 

• 7th and 8th grade school students are not admitted to high school dances. 

• If a student briefly leaves the dance, he/she must be accompanied by staff, or he/she will not be allowed to 
return to the dance. 

• Student dance styles will avoid lewd, sexually suggestive, or potentially dangerous movements. 

• Tickets are pre-sold and will also be available for purchase at the door. 

• No one will be admitted over the age of 20; ID is required for admittance. 

• A Breathalyzer test may be given if there is reasonable suspicion. 

• Dances will be from 8:00 PM – 11:00 PM. 
 

 Junior High Dances: 

• To attend a school dance, a student must have attended all day at school on that day of the dance/activity, 
unless special arrangements have been made. 

• Dances are for Jenkins Jr. High School students only unless another Jr. High School has been invited by the 
student council.  

• When a student briefly leaves the dance, he/she must be accompanied by staff, or he/she will not be 
allowed to return to the dance.  

• High school students and other guests are not allowed on campus in the Jenkins Jr. High School areas while 
the activity is taking place. 

• Parents/guardians are always encouraged to volunteer as chaperones after a background check. 
 

DRESS CODE/APPAREL – See Discipline Policy 3241, pg. 5, In-school and short-term suspension. 

Students have a responsibility to dress and appear on school campuses according to standards of propriety, safety, 
and health. 
 

Dress/Apparel. A student’s dress and appearance may be regulated when, in the judgment of school  
administrators, there are reasonable expectations that: 
 

• A health or safety hazard shall be presented by the student’s dress or appearance. 

• Damage to school property shall result from student’s dress; or 

• A disruption to the learning environment may occur. 
 

The following guidelines will uniformly be applied to dress and grooming for all students. 
 



 
 

12 
 

• Shorts and skirts are to be longer than the student’s fingertips when arms are at sides and fully extended. 
Holes and frayed material in pants/shorts/skirts should not be above the fingertips. 

• Footwear with soles must be worn in school facilities and on school grounds. 

• Reference to tobacco, marijuana, weapons, violence, drug and/or alcohol on clothing is not allowed. 
Colors or clothing with the purpose of gang identification, and inappropriate pictures and /or words on 
clothing of an obscene and/or sexual nature are also prohibited. 

• Clothing should adequately cover the body. See-through apparel, clothing with holes in the seat or crotch, 
bare stomachs or midriffs, bareback shirts (halter/tank tops/racerback), low cut shirts or dresses, and 
strapless dresses are prohibited. Shirts should cover the midriff to the beltline. All undergarments should 
be covered. 

• Proper personal hygiene is encouraged of all students and will reduce problems with peers. Wearing clean 
clothes and regular bathing is essential. 

• Sunglasses are not to be worn in school unless prescribed by a physician and cleared through the office. 

• Junior high students may not wear hats in class or assemblies. 

• Non-distracting hats are allowed in the high school setting; however, hoodies should remain off heads 
during class and all assemblies for safety purposes. 

 
Where such violations or disruptions occur, the student shall be subject to disciplinary action. 
 

EMERGENCY DRILLS: EVACUATIONS (FIRE DRILL – BOMB THREAT – EARTHQUAKE) 

Drills at regular intervals are required by law and are an important safety precaution. Fire drills are one of the 
evacuation drills at JJSHS. It is essential that when the first signal is given for a fire drill, everyone obeys the verbal 
orders for evacuation by the building administrator or designee. If directed to exit the building, students will 
promptly clear the building by the prescribed route as quickly as possible. The teacher in each classroom will give 
the students instructions. Students/teachers shall stand at least 50 feet away from the building until signaled to 
reenter.  
 
Intentional pulling of a false fire alarm will result in police notification and criminal charges will be pursued by the 
school district. 
 
During an earthquake, students should move under desks or tables and away from unsecured objects. 
 

EMERGENCY SCHOOL CLOSURES  

Since it is possible for Chewelah Schools to start late or remain closed from time to time, it is important to listen to 
local radio or TV stations for this information. Local TV stations are: Channel 6-KHQ, Channel 2-KREM, and Channel 
4-KXLY. Local radio stations are 98.1 FM KISC, 92.1 FM KCVL, 1240 AM and 920 AM and Chewelah KCHW 102.7 FM. 
Chewelah School District also uses a mass telephone, text message, and e-mail system to notify families. It is 
important for families to keep contact information up to date in Skyward. 
 

FEES 

Some elective classes at JJSHS include fees. A fee may be collected for any program in which the resultant product 
is in excess of minimum requirements and, at the student’s options, becomes the personal property of the 
student. These fees shall be described in class registration literature and are school board approved. A waiver or 
reduction may be requested through qualification for free and reduced lunches. The USDA Child Nutrition Program 
guidelines shall be used to determine qualification for a fee waiver or reduction. 
 

 FEES A STUDENT MAY BE LIABLE FOR: 
Fees are by term and are not refundable after the first two weeks of the term. Courses such as art, 
pottery, CTE, and band may have fees associated with them. These fees can vary by year and term. Please 
see the individual course syllabus to determine any necessary fees. 

 
District charges/fines 



 
 

13 
 

• Lost or damaged textbooks or library book(s) (replacement cost), P.E. locks, etc. $5.00 - $120.00 per 
item. 

• Destructive writing or damaging desks - $5.00 - $125.00 

• Damage to equipment or school facilities – repair or replacement costs possibly including labor. 
 

FIELD TRIPS (Due to COVID-19, field trips may be reduced, eliminated or modified.) 

Field trips are used to enhance the educational process and recognize positive behavior. A signed permission form 
must be turned in prior to participating. Consistent failure to respond to classroom/school discipline may result in 
losing the field trip privilege or may make it necessary for a parent to attend. 
 
 8th GRADE TRIP 

This will be determined annually. Each class will need to raise money for their trip by doing fundraisers, 
throughout the year. Fundraisers need to be voted by the class, approved by the principal and ASB. 
Parents may sponsor fundraisers and donate proceeds to 8th grade trip fund. Students may attend the 9th 
grade trip if they have earned less than three office referrals throughout the course of the year, and no F’s 
during 3rd/4th quarter. 
 
JUNIOR HIGH 100% CLUB 
Students in good standing (no missing assignments with a passing grade and no office 
referrals/detentions) may attend the 100% club field trip. There will be one activity per semester. 

 

FOOD AND DRINK 

To keep our school clean, safe, and well maintained, food and drink are only allowed with teacher permission. 
Lunch food may be allowed in carpeted areas of hallways or classrooms this year. Water is acceptable in class at 
any time and is the only drink allowed in the junior high carpeted hallway. 
 

GUIDANCE & COUNSELING 

The purpose of the guidance counseling service is to help students with their social, educational, career, and 
personal development. Conferences with students are scheduled whenever necessary. Students wishing to see 
their counselor should make an appointment. The counselor will assist the student: 

• In making curriculum selections as aligned to their High School and Beyond Plans. 

• In providing standardized test interpretation. 

• In offering occupational and career information. 

• In providing confidential assistance with personal conflicts and challenges, including referral for drug/alcohol 
assessment and intervention services. 

 

GYM USE 

The gym is used for classes, athletics, assemblies, recreation, and other activities. Keeping the gym both clean and 
safe is very important. 
Gym rules: 

• An adult must supervise activities. 

• Shoes shall be clean of dirt and rocks that can damage the gym floor.  Rubber-soled athletic shoes are 
expected of all PE students and athletic participants. 

• Reckless and dangerous behavior is prohibited. 

• Drinking water containers should have a lid. 

• Often the gym is used as a classroom, therefore, respect the space if in use. 
 

HALL PASSES 

Students who need to leave class must carry with them a JJSHS DESIGNATED HALL PASS that must be authorized by 
the teacher. Students are to remain in class the first 10 and last 10 minutes of class. Junior high students are not 
allowed to linger in the halls during high school lunch. High school students are not allowed to linger in the junior 
high hallway during lunch. 



 
 

14 
 

 

HOMEWORK MAKEUP 

If a student is absent for an extended time the office will make an effort to get homework assignments upon 
parental request. Students are encouraged to contact their teacher directly through e-mail or other established 
procedures in the syllabi. The office will try to get homework assignments; however, we cannot guarantee success 
in only one day. Teachers allow reasonable time for makeup work for excused absences. The general rule is one 
day for each day of excused absence. 
 

ILLNESS AT SCHOOL 

If a student becomes ill at school the student will be directed to go to the Health Room on the stage. Parents and 

or guardians will be immediately contacted and will receive information regarding the safe return of students to 

the school. If the student is having any COVID-19 related symptoms, they will remain in the Health Room until 

parents or guardians can pick them up from school. The parent or guardian will receive a letter with information 

about COVID-19 testing locations and explaining how the student will be encouraged to have a COVID-19 test or a 

letter from their physician stating that the symptoms are not COVID-19 related. The letter will state the conditions 

for the student’s return to school.  

School staff members are not permitted to issue non-prescription medication unless as specified by a medical 
professional as part of a student’s Emergency Care Plan. An ill student must call his/her parent/guardian for 
permission to leave school, checking out through the office before leaving, and will not be allowed to remain in 
bathrooms or other unsupervised areas. Students who need to take any medication at school must have a 
completed medical form signed by the parents and physician (forms available at the office). This includes all 
prescribed and over-the-counter medications. Prescribed medication must be checked into the office and will be 
dispensed per doctor orders. A student is permitted to carry a one-day supply of over-the-counter analgesics such 
as (Tylenol, Ibuprofen, Aspirin) once the form has been completed and submitted to the office.  All medications 
must be in the original containers and for his/her consumption. Students are prohibited from dispensing these 
medications to other students. 
 

LEAVING DURING SCHOOL HOURS/CAMPUS POLICY 

Students are not allowed to leave the school grounds at any time during the school day without following checkout 
procedures, except during lunch when campus is open to students in grades 10-12. In the event of an emergency 
or illness, the student shall notify their teacher and report to the office. Parent or guardian notification will be 
required for the student to leave the school grounds. Failure to follow this procedure when leaving school is a 
campus policy violation and will result in an unexcused absence or truancy. 
 

LIBRARY/MEDIA CENTER 

The building library will remain open from 7:45 AM to 4:00 PM for the general population of students. The JJSHS 
Library is considered a classroom space, used for a variety of purposes by students and teachers throughout the 
school year. Please be respectful of others in this environment. 
 

LOCK DOWN 

In case of an armed intruder, JJSHS will implement a lock down procedure. Staff and students will be instructed on 
lockdown procedures, when possible, over the intercom and be given specific directions and information. It is 
essential that procedures are followed promptly to ensure the safety of everyone. There are times when it is not 
the best choice for a classroom or individual to remain in a lockdown but to flee. Again, it is necessary to follow the 
directions of the adults in the classroom or setting. If you find yourself alone, you must make a choice as how to 
react as an individual to keep yourself safe while listening to information from the administrator or adult on the 
intercom. 
 

LOCKERS  

Hallway and gym lockers are school property assigned to the student for use during the school year. Students may 
not switch lockers without the permission of the Principal or Assistant Principal. Lockers are the possession of the 



 
 

15 
 

school and may be inspected without notice. Students are not to jam their lockers in a manner that the lock will 
not function. Tampering or modifying the lock or lock mechanism holds the student responsible for items lost or 
stolen. Students should avoid placing stickers or other adhesive backed papers on the lockers. Students are 
responsible to leave lockers in the condition in which they were issued. All PE, Weight Training students and 
athletic participants will be issued a lock and a locker. Students are required to use the locker and should not leave 
personal items unsecured. 
 

LOST & FOUND 

Lost & found will be in the Jock City hallway. Some small and/or valuable personal items will be kept in the office. 
The box will be emptied periodically, and all unclaimed items will be donated to charity. If you find something that 
does not belong to you, turn it into the office. 
 

LUNCH AND CAFETERIA GUIDELINES  

• Breakfast and lunch is provided free of charge to all Chewelah School District students for the 2021-22 school 
year.  Students may also bring their own lunch to school. 

• No food or open drink containers are to be taken into the carpeted areas of the school unless permitted by 
the principal. 

• There will be designated areas that students will be assigned to eat in the high school. The designated areas 
are the cafeteria, the library and on the gym bleachers. If more space in needed for safety, additional 
classrooms will be opened. Junior high will all eat in the cafeteria during the hybrid model. Both JH and HS will 
have assigned seating and will use social distancing. 

• Charging of breakfast, lunches and/or ala carte can create a debt that is hard to pay. It is best to try to pay for 
your meals in advance of eating to avoid charging a lunch. 

• Students may sit in their own car on school property during lunch time. 

• Students are allowed outside at lunch in designated, supervised areas, such as the front of the school outside 
the main office and gym entrances.  

 

THE MCKINNEY VENTO ACT (TMVA) 

TMVA addresses the issue of homeless children and youth and defines them as those who lack a fixed, regular, and 
adequate nighttime residence. This includes children and youth living in: 

• Emergency or transitional shelters 

• Motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds 

• Shared housing due to loss of housing or economic hardship (doubled-up) 

• Hospitals secondary to abandonment or awaiting foster care placement 

• Cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, or similar situations 

• Public or private places not ordinarily used as sleeping accommodations for human beings 
 

The intent of this act is to ensure that homeless children and youth have equal access to the same free and 
appropriate public education as housed children. Those who are in any of the above situations should contact 
Vanessa Bigler in the Jenkins Junior/Senior High School Counselling Office at 685-6800, extension 2011. 
 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 

A moment of silence shall be prior to the Pledge of Allegiance on September 11, or the school day prior to this 
date. This moment of silence is in recognition of the loss of life that occurred in 2001 on that day in New York City 
due to a hostile attack on the World Trade Centers, The Pentagon in Washington, D.C., and a commercial airliner 
that was intentionally destroyed in Pennsylvania. To encourage students to reflect on our heritage as a country 
and community, a second moment of silence shall be prior to the Pledge of Allegiance on the school day before the 
Veteran’s Day Holiday in recognition of efforts to support human rights around the world. A third moment of 
silence shall be prior to the Pledge of Allegiance on the school day before Martin Luther King Holiday in recognition 
of efforts to support human rights within the United States of America. 
 



 
 

16 
 

PARENTAL ACCESS TO STUDENT RECORDS (FERPA) 
The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students over 18 years of age (“eligible 
students”) certain rights with respect to the student’s education records. They are: 

• The right to inspect and review the student’s education records within 45 days of the day the district receives 
a request for access. Parents or eligible students should submit to the district records custodian a written 
request that identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The records custodian will arrange for access and 
notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. 

• The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent or eligible student 
believes is inaccurate or misleading. Parents or eligible students may ask the district to amend a record that 
they believe is inaccurate or misleading. They should write the school principal; clearly identify the part of the 
record they want changed and specify why it is inaccurate or misleading. If the District decides not to amend 
the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the district will notify the parent or eligible student 
of the decision and advise them of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional 
information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified 
of the right to a hearing. 

• The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student’s education 
records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception which permits 
disclosure without consent is disclosure to school officials with legitimate educational interests. A school 
official is a person employed by the District as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff 
member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the 
School Board; a person or company with whom the District has contracted to perform a special task (such as 
an attorney, hearing officer, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent or student serving on an 
official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in 
performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review 
an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility. 

 

Upon request, the district discloses educational records without consent to officials of another school district in 
which a student seeks or intends to enroll. 
 

• The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the 
district to comply with the requirements of FERPA.  

• The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is: 
   Family Policy Compliance Office 
   U.S. Department of Education 
   400 Maryland Avenue S.W. 
   Washington, D.C. 20202-4605 
State Law Qualification: Although FERPA allows 45 days to honor a request, the state policy records law requires an 
appropriate response to a “public records” request within five business days. RCW 42.17.320 
 
NOTE: In addition, a school may want to include its directory information public notice, as required by section 
99.37 of the regulations, with its annual notification or rights under FERPA. 
 

PARKING LOT 

Use of the school parking lot is a privilege. Students are expected to enter and leave school property in a safe and 
orderly fashion. Students must have a valid driver’s license and proof of insurance. It is required that all students 
register any vehicle they may drive to school. There are three parking lots at JJSHS. Students may park in the two 
lots in front of the school during the school day. Parking in the rear of the school is prohibited until after 3:00 PM 
or school is dismissed. When using the paved lot, students must park within the lines in designated spaces. 
Students may not park in staff, visitor, or handicapped parking spaces (without a valid handicapped permit). 
Driving in excess of 10-mph is subject to discipline for reckless or dangerous driving. Students may not sit in cars 
during school except at their lunch time.  
 



 
 

17 
 

PERSONAL PROPERTY/VALUABLES  

Students are advised not to bring large amounts of money or valuables to school. Students are also advised to 
secure their belongings in their locked school or gym lockers. The office will occasionally hold money or items of 
value upon request. The Chewelah School District is not responsible for items lost or stolen at school or at school 
activities. If valuables are taken from a secured locker, contact the office to make a written report. The school is 
not obligated to investigate theft when students leave belongings unsecured. If students bring personal items to 
school, they do so at their own risk. The school is not responsible for reimbursement of any kind to students or 
their families. 
 

PUBLIC DISPLAY OF AFFECTION (PDA) 

Students shall refrain from inappropriate behaviors on campus and at school related events. Inappropriate public 

display of affection, such as: lewd or inappropriate touching, fondling, lap sitting, etc., are not allowed and will 

result in discipline being applied. 

SKATEBOARD OR ROLLERBLADES, BIKES AND SCOOTERS 

Students shall not rollerblade, roller-skate, skateboard or ride bikes or scooters on school grounds for recreational 
purposes, including all outdoor and indoor non-instructional periods. For purposes of this policy, school grounds 
shall include all school buildings, parking lots, paths, playgrounds, and stairwells leading to school entrances. 
Students may ride skateboards, rollerblades and bikes or scooters to school. This is considered non-recreational 
and will be allowed. Students on skateboards and scooters shall dismount before entering school grounds. 
Students choosing to carry rollerblades, roller skates, skateboards or scooters onto school grounds shall promptly 
store such equipment in lockers or other approved storage areas like the office. 
 

STUDENT COUNCIL 

The Student Council has a highly active role. Its purpose is not to govern the students, but to serve as a meeting 
place between the student body and the administration, where the students can assume much of the 
responsibility of organizing their high school activities. It is the place where the problems or questions arising from 
either the students or the administration can be presented for discussion and consideration. 
 
The Student Council’s main purposes are as follows: 

• To unify student activities under one control and promote the general activities of the school; 

• To promote the safety and positive climate of the school; 

• To aid in the internal administration of the school; 

• To teach students the values of working in a democracy. 
 

Officers of the Student Council (ASB) are elected in school-wide balloting in the spring of each school year. Each 
class, club, and activity, elects representatives to the council. The council holds regular meetings. Council members 
are encouraged to take the JH or HS leadership class. 
 
For Junior High students: The Associated Student Body (ASB) is comprised of 7th and 8th grade students enrolled 
full-time at Jenkins Junior/Senior High School. Officers are elected in the spring from the current 7th grade class. 
Student Council representatives are elected from 1st period classes and may change each semester. Participation in 
Student Council provides opportunities for student leadership and management of activities and finances. 
 

TARDINESS 

Students are expected to be on time to class for both live and distance learning courses. Students who have 
excessive tardiness are subject to discipline. Students who arrive 10 or more minutes after start of class are 
considered absent. Teachers should send tardy students directly to the office for a tardy slip. 
 

VISITORS/GUESTS  

Visitors must check in at the office. If a visitor is not a parent, guardian or listed on Skyward as an emergency 
contact they may not visit a student.  



 
 

18 
 

 

WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS 

A student may not possess or transmit any object that can be reasonably considered to be a firearm, air gun or 
dangerous weapon on school property or in vehicles. Violation of this rule with a firearm will result in a minimum 
one-year expulsion unless modified by the Superintendent. Any violation of this policy by secondary students 
constitutes grounds for expulsion from the state’s public schools. School officials will promptly notify law 
enforcement and the student’s parent or guardian regarding any allegation or indication of such violation. 
 
Examples of dangerous weapons are throwing stars, nun-chu-ka sticks, and BB or pellet guns. Other dangerous 
weapons are defined in chapter RCW 9.41 including 9.41.280. 
 

ACADEMIC INFORMATION 
 

COURSE SELECTION/SCHEDULE CHANGES 

• If the classes requested cannot be assigned to a student’s class schedule, alternates will be assigned in the 
order of preference and availability to fill the student’s schedule. 

• Students may only initiate schedule changes during the first week of the term. No changes will be considered 
without a compelling educational reason. 

• Students are required to attend their assigned class until their schedule change is approved and completed. 
 

DROPPING COURSES 

Students have seven (7) school days to change courses at the semesters. After seven days the students who drops 
a course will receive an F or an incomplete on their transcripts. 

 

FINAL EXAMS 

Comprehensive final exams or projects may be given each term to students at JJSHS. Exams will be scheduled 
toward the end of the semester. 
 

GRADES: (Grading scale and GPA) 

The numerical values assigned for grade point averages are in parenthesis.  All JJSHS teachers follow this scale. 
 
93-100  A  (4.0) 
90-92  A- (3.7) 
87-89  B+ (3.3) 

83-86  B  ( 3.0) 
80-82  B-  (2.7) 
77-79  C+ (2.3) 

73-76  C   (2.0) 
70-72  C-  (1.7) 
67-69  D+ (1.3) 

60-66  D   (1.0) 
  0-59    F   (0.0) 

 

• Note: A Pass (P) does not figure in the student GPA. 
 

GRADES: (Progress Reports) 

Progress reports are issued at approximately the nine-week mark of each semester. Progress reports show the 
student’s grades to the midpoint of the semester and are also used to determine eligibility for participation in 
extracurricular activities. A total of two mid-term reports are completed per school year. Students or parents who 
would like more frequent reports should initiate these reports. Parent access via Skyward data management is 
available through the Chewelah School District website (www.chewelah.k12.wa.us). Passwords are available 
through the JJSHS Counselling Office. Junior high students with a D or F at mid-quarter will receive a printed 
progress report sent home via the student. 
 

 

GRADES: (Report Cards) 

Report cards are issued at the end of each 18-week grading term. Letter grades are used to designate a student’s 
achievement. Semester II assignments and assessments must be complete on the last day of school. If there are 



 
 

19 
 

extenuating circumstances, the student should contact their teacher and/or counselor immediately. Students 
receiving an incomplete at the end of a semester will have two weeks from the last day of the term to complete 
work unless the state allows for changes in the procedure. 
 

HONORS AT COMMENCEMENT FOR THE GRADUATING SENIORS 

The following system will be used to determine class rank including Valedictorian and Salutatorian. In addition to 
the current GPA system, at the culmination of the first semester of the senior year, the following formula will be 
applied. An internal GPA will be figured in a weighted system. Advanced courses will be given one additional GPA 
point per course. The student with the highest weighted GPA is top ranked student and is named Valedictorian. 
The student with the second highest weighted GPA is the #2 ranked student and is named Salutatorian. 
The student’s internal GPA will be determined by an internal weighting system: 
Advanced Courses: A=5, B=4, C=3, D=2, and F=0 
Regular Courses: A=4, B=3, C=2, D=1, and F=0 
 
Each year the administrative team, counselor, and with feedback from teachers, will determine which courses will 
be considered advanced courses. This information will be communicated to students and parents on or before the 
second day of the school year. 
 

RUNNING START 

This is a program designed to allow students to earn College and High School credit simultaneously. For 
information see the Counselor. Seniors in Running Start must finish High School graduation requirements by the 
second college quarter in order to be eligible for a JJSHS diploma at graduation. 
 

TECHNOLOGY/INTERNET 

Chewelah School District continues to strive to provide technical tools that enhance skills and opportunities for 
student learning. The use of computer workstation and laptop tools is a privilege that can be lost if not 
appropriately used. The uses of games, posting or viewing inappropriate materials, or hardware sabotage are some 
of the actions that could result in disciplinary action. Students will be permitted access to the internet unless a 
form is on file that states it is the wish of the parent or guardian that the student does not access the internet at 
school (See Policy 2022 & 2022P) Electronic Information System (Networks). Students shall keep passwords 
confidential from other students. Students who share passwords, or use another person’s computer password, 
shall be subject to disciplinary action and possible loss of computer/network privileges. 
 

TEXTBOOKS 

Textbooks are issued to students in some classes. Textbooks, workbooks, and all other materials issued for student 
use will be examined at the completion of the course. Students will be charged fees for loss or negligent damage to 
these materials.  
 

TESTING 

 PSAT 

 All Juniors should take this test. There are fees associated with the PSAT. Please contact the counseling  
office for fee and schedule information. PSAT is given in October. 

SAT: On-site twice yearly. Go to Collegeboard.org for more information. 
ACT: Go to actstudent.org for more information. 
Testing information will be presented to you by our Counseling Department; however, don’t hesitate to 
contact the office for any assessment information you might need. 

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES AND CLUBS 

Each student is encouraged to participate in extra-curricular activities. Club descriptions are available 
from the club advisors. Commonly offered activities are listed below, however, they are subject to 
change: 



 
 

20 
 

  
HIGH SCHOOL (9th-12th) JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL (6th-8th) 

FALL: FALL: 

-Football (boys/girls) -Football (7th & 8th boys) 

-Volleyball (girls) -Volleyball (girls) 

-Cross Country (boys/girls) -Cross Country (boys/girls) 

-Marching Band/Pep Band    

  EARLY WINTER: 

WINTER: -Wrestling (boys/girls) 

-Wrestling (boys/girls) -Girls Basketball 

-Basketball (boys/girls)   

  WINTER: 

SPRING: -Science Olympiad 

-Baseball (boys - including 8th)  

-Track (boys/girls)  LATE WINTER: 

-Tennis (boys/girls - including 8th) -Boys Basketball 

-Golf (boys/girls - including 8th)  

-Softball (girls)  SPRING: 

  -Track (boys/girls) 

  -Softball (girls) 

 

YEAR-AROUND ACTIVITIES  
Color Guard, National Honor Society, FFA, Cheerleading, Student Council (ASB), CCREW Club, Drama, 
Unified Sports, Knowledge Bowl, Pep Band and possibly Esports Club are offered at Jenkins on a yearly 
basis. 
 
 

FFA 

The FFA Organization is a national youth organization that makes a positive difference in the lives of 
young people by developing their potential for leadership, personal growth and career success through 
agriculture education. FFA functions within the three-circle model of agricultural education as a student 
leadership organization that complements a student’s classroom/laboratory instruction and Supervised 
Agricultural Experience program. FFA members can compete in Career Development Events (CDEs) that 
cover job skills in everything from communications to mechanics. Some events allow students to 
compete as individuals, while other allow them to compete in teams. Check out www.ffa.org for more 
info! FFA Dues for High School per year are $25.00 and $5 for Junior High.   
 
 

NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY 

To be eligible for election to membership in this chapter, you must be a full-time student at the 
Chewelah School District (grades 9-12) for a minimum of three semesters and maintain a minimum 
cumulative GPA of 3.5. After returning the membership form, your eligibility shall then be considered on 
your service, leadership, scholarship, and character by the Jenkins High School faculty. Service is defined 
by voluntary contributions made by you to your school or community, done without compensation and 
with a positive, courteous, and enthusiastic spirit. Leadership is demonstrated by students who are 
resourceful, good problem solvers, promoters of school activities, idea-contributors, dependable, and 
persons who exemplify positive attitudes about life. A student of good character upholds principles of 
morality and ethics, is cooperative, demonstrates high standards of honesty and reliability, shows 
courtesy, concern and respect for others and generally maintains a good clean lifestyle. 
 
NHS is a national service organization designed to recognize students who have excelled in the four 
areas: of service, leadership, scholarship and character. This membership is recognized by College and 



 
 

21 
 

Universities, scholarship committees, and prospective employers. Membership in NHS is something to 
be proud of and respected. A $15 one-time induction fee is required. 
 

FEES, STUDENT BODY 

• ASB Card $35.00 for high school and $30.00 for junior high school (Required for all sports, clubs, 
Pep Band Members, Class Officers, Science Olympiad Members, Knowledge Bowl Members, 
National Honor Society, ASB Officers, and Cheerleaders).  Students who qualify for free/reduced 
lunch may have the ASB card waived. 

 

SPORTS 

Any student involved in extracurricular activities must have a signed extracurricular code, accident 
insurance, medical release form, sport safety guidelines submitted to the Athletic Director via the 
athletic eligibility website, FamilyID.com. and other paperwork on file with the Athletic Director. 
Students involved in these activities must also abide by specific academic standards to be eligible. 
Athletes and Cheerleaders are expected to follow dress guidelines outlined by their coach or advisor. 
These may be stricter than the regular school dress code expectations. See the Athletic Director or Head 
Coach for more information. 
 

SPORTSMANSHIP 

JJSHS has always had the reputation of displaying excellent sportsmanship at interscholastic contests. 
Our goal is to ensure that this continues. Our student body and our fans need to be aware of our rules of 
good conduct and sportsmanship. Our athletic league and JJSHS promote fair play and good 
sportsmanship by all. Some areas of focus are: 

• Be positive examples of good sportsmanship for others. 

• All yelling, screaming, or cheering should be FOR our own team – not AGAINST the opposition or 
officials. 

• No taunting of opponents or opposing fans is allowed. 

• Only authorized school personnel should be on the playing field/floor. 

• Refrain from throwing objects of any kind onto the playing surface or field. 

• Refrain from booing or making vulgar or suggestive gestures. 
 
We urge everyone to go to the games and cheer our teams to victory and abide by the sportsmanship 
rules listed above.  Any spectator in violation of these rules may be advised to leave the sporting event. 
Continuous and/or serious violation may result in suspension from participating in or attendance at 
extra-curricular activities. 

 

DISCIPLINE PHILOSOPHY AND PLAN 
 

“A safe orderly school only happens when everyone is involved in discipline” 
 

At JJSHS there are six general behaviors all students and staff should adhere to: 
 
 
COURTESY – All students and staff at JJSHS will be courteous to all others. 
RESPECT – All students and staff at JJSHS will respect self, others, individual differences, and property. 



 
 

22 
 

COOPERATION – All students and staff at JJSHS will actively work to cooperate with others. 
HONESTY – All students and staff at JJSHS will observe the belief that honesty is the best policy. 
RESPONSIBILITY - All students and staff at JJSHS will accept the responsibility for their actions and know 
the school rules and expectations. 
SELF-DISCIPLINE/WORK ETHIC - All students and staff at JJSHS will strive toward self-discipline and a 
strong work ethic. 
 
STATEMENT REGARDING JENKINS JR/SR HIGH SCHOOL DISCIPLINE POLICY 
It is the policy of Chewelah School District No. 36 to encourage student conduct that shall promote good 
health, reasonable standards of behavior, effective citizenship, and a positive environment for learning. 
Students on school grounds or in places under school jurisdiction are expected to abide by the rules, 
which are established to achieve these objectives. 
 
Admission to the schools of Chewelah carries with it the presumption that the student shall conduct 
him/herself as a responsible member of the school community. This includes the expectation that the 
student shall obey the law, adhere to the policies of the School District, and comply with rules and 
regulations implementing these policies. In addition, the student is expected to safeguard the property 
of the school and to respect the rights and privileges of others in the school community. 
 
In accordance with his/her level of maturity, each student is expected to accept responsibility for his/her 
own conduct. In order to accomplish the educational purposes of the Chewelah School District in an 
effective school environment, the Board of Directors has approved a standardized student discipline 
model developed with input by parents/guardians/custodians, students, and staff. When violations of 
these rules occur, the school is authorized to take appropriate action designed to ensure more 
responsible behavior on the part of the student. When considering the level of disciplinary action, staff 
shall consider several factors including, but not limited to, the student’s attitude, the severity of 
conduct, the student’s intent, the effect on other students and/or staff, mitigating circumstances, and 
the student’s discipline history. When violations of the laws of the United States, the State of 
Washington, and/or its subdivisions are also involved, the school should refer such matters to parents, 
legal guardians, or appropriate authorities. 
 
Students are reminded that they should adhere to a code of good behavior, not only for their benefit, 
but for the benefit of others as well. Students are responsible for their actions and will be held 
accountable for the rules and regulations concerning student behavior.  
  
 
STUDENT DISCIPLINE 
 
Student Conduct Rules  
  
Students who are the victim of bullying or harassment or who observe such occurring are to promptly 
report the problem to their teacher or to the Principal so the problem can be addressed. Students who 
make reports of bullying activity should not be retaliated against for making the report.  
 
Reporting Student Law Violations:  

(1) Cases of law violations or suspected law violations by students will be reported to the police and  
to the student's parents or guardian as soon as possible.  

(2) When a Principal or other school official releases a minor student to a peace officer (e.g., police  
officer, sheriff, and all other persons with similar authority to make arrests) for the purpose of  



 
 

23 
 

removing the minor from the school premises, the Principal or other school official will take  
immediate steps to notify the parent, guardian, or responsible relative of the minor regarding the  
release of the minor to the officer and regarding the place to which the minor is reportedly being  
taken. An exception applies when a minor has been taken into custody as a victim of suspected  
child abuse: in that event the Principal or other school official shall provide the peace officer  
with the address and telephone number of the minor's parents or guardian.  

(3) In an effort to demonstrate that student behavior is always subject to possible legal sanctions  
regardless of where the behavior occurs it shall be the policy of the Chewelah Public Schools to  
notify the proper legal authorities when a student engages in any of the following behaviors on  
school grounds or at a school sponsored event:  

(a) Knowingly possessing illegal drugs or alcohol.  
(b) Aggravated or felonious assault. 
(c) Vandalism resulting in significant property damage.  
(d) Theft of school or personal property of a significant nature.  
(e) Automobile accident.  
(f) Any other behavior which significantly threatens the health or safety of students or other 
persons, and such other offenses which are required to be reported by law. When appropriate, it 
shall be the responsibility of the referring administrator to contact the student's parent of the fact 
that the referral to legal authorities has been or will be made.  

 
Police Questioning of Student  
It is the philosophy and belief of the administration at Chewelah Public Schools that the responsibility 
for dealing with student discipline violations rests with us. Thus, we will make every effort to handle 
such problems in-house, according to the policies and procedures established by the district and the 
school. However, when violations of state laws or city ordinances occur, or when students or parents 
refuse to work within the established policies of the district and school, or where security of persons or 
property appears to be in jeopardy, the district will not hesitate to call the police. In the event the police 
desire to talk to a student during school time the administration will follow new state law in 
coordination with our local police department.  
 
Corrective and Disciplinary Techniques  
These discipline guidelines will be followed for the 2021-2022 school year. If the School Board adopts 
new Discipline Policy/Procedures, the Disciplinary Procedures in the Student Handbook will be subject 
to change and an Addendum will be sent to parents and communicated with students. 
 
 
Level 1: 
Teacher and student resolve the problem. Teachers will use a variety of strategies to  
resolve minor issues when managing their classrooms, including brief exclusions from the classroom. 
Students will not be excluded from their classroom unless they are causing a substantial disruption to 
the learning environment. Teachers will use three corrective teaching techniques before a staff-
supervised detention is assigned. Though a staff-supervised detention may be issued any time a teacher 
deems it appropriate, teachers are encouraged to require the student to serve a classroom detention 
before issuing a staff-supervised detention. Staff-supervised detention(s)/consequences. Only 3 
behavior related detentions will be allowed before moving to the next level. 
 
Level 2: 30-minute detention  
 
Level 3: One-hour detention  



 
 

24 
 

 
Level 4: Two-hour detention 
 
Level 5: Suspensions are a reasonable consequence as per Policy 3241P-Refusal to cease prohibited 
behavior. 
 
Level 2, 3 & 4 referrals are the accumulation of all teachers, not just one individual teacher. The severity  
of the incident or the accumulations of several incidents may cause several steps to be bypassed. This  
decision is left to the discretion of the Principal or designee.  
 
The following is representative of the types of corrective disciplinary measures available but is not all  
inclusive:  
 
Detention  
 
Detention period is a time when the student is assigned to stay after school for school rule violations or 
an infraction of acceptable behavior. Detention periods are scheduled on Monday-Thursday from 3:15-
3:45 PM. If a student misses an assigned detention due to absence from school, it will automatically be 
moved to the next available night. It is the student’s responsibility to attend the next evening unless 
other arrangements are made with the principal. Students should understand that any certified or 
support staff member in the building has the authority to correct misconduct at any time. Therefore, it is 
conceivable that any staff member may assign a detention to a student who is violating school rules. 
Before assigning after-school detention, the staff member will inform the student of the specific 
behavior prompting the detention and provide the student with an opportunity to explain or justify the 
behavior. Students and parents may challenge the administration of other forms of discipline, including 
the imposition of after-school detention using the grievance process outlined below and in Policy 
3241(P). 
 
Once a student has been assigned three behavior-based detentions, they will automatically move to a 
one-hour detention.  
 
Detention Period Rules: 
 

1. Detentions will be held in the classroom of the assigned teacher for the assigned time or 
with the detention supervisor in the designated detention room.  

2. If a student shows up after 3:15 PM without approval, he/she may be requested to stay for 
the entire assigned time and may be assigned additional detention day(s).  

3. Detention time should be used to work on academic work or reading.  
4. Students will work independently and quietly.  
5. Students will not be allowed to leave the room without the permission of the monitor.  
6. Failure to attend an assigned detention without prior approval of the Principal will generally 

result in the assignment of an additional detention according to the detention schedule.  
7. Failure to report for a doubled detention will result in assignment of additional time.  
8. Bus riders shall not be exempt from detention periods. They shall, however, be allowed 

sufficient time to make arrangements for a ride home before they serve their detention 
periods.  

 
CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE 
  



 
 

25 
 

The infractions of school discipline listed below and on the following pages are grouped in categories  
according to the seriousness of the offense. The list has been drawn from past records and from known  
situations. It is not intended to cover all situations, and therefore, all types of infractions may not be 
included. Modifications will be made, if necessary, at the discretion of the building Principals. In all  
instances, interpretation is left to the individual Principal to modify penalties suggested whenever  
extenuating circumstances seem to be present in order that both the student and the educational 
interests are dealt with in a fair manner. Any student placed on out-of-school suspension or any student 
who is expelled, will not be allowed to attend any school activities on or off campus during the time of 
his/her suspension or expulsion.  
 
A) Acts of Misconduct: Group I - Misbehavior  
 
Group I include those student behaviors which interfere with the orderly educational process in the 
classroom. These include, but are not limited to such behavior as:  
 

• being in restricted areas of building or grounds without permission  

• littering school grounds or building  

• improper care or deliberate damage to books or school property  

• traffic or parking violations related to school rules  

• violation of dress code  

• inappropriate display of affection  

• eating or drinking outside of the cafeteria  

• failure to cooperate with teachers and school officials  

• out of classroom without a pass  
 
Penalties:  Disciplinary actions consistent with Group I infractions include but are not limited to:  
 

• teacher-student conference  

• in-class disciplinary action 

• counselor/student conference  

• administrator/student conference  

• detention(s)  

• task assignments  

• loss of privileges  
 

B) Acts of Misconduct: Group II Discipline Infractions 
  
Group II include those student discipline infractions, which interfere with the orderly  
educational process in the school. These include, but are not limited to such behaviors as:  
 

• any repeated or chronic misbehavior as defined in Group I  

• defacing school property  

• tampering with and/or misusing computer programs, equipment and/or  

• student report cards, passes or any other school records  

• verbal assault or verbal/written threats  

• disturbance of class, study hall, cafeteria, or any other school function  

• Inappropriate language or gestures, not directed at specific individuals  

• defiance and/or display of disrespect of staff/personnel authority  



 
 

26 
 

• failure to abide by rules and regulations regarding field trips  

• inciting conflict between others  
 
Penalties: Disciplinary actions consistent with Group II infractions include, but are not limited to:  
 

• administrator/teacher/student conference  

• detention  

• task assignment  

• loss of privileges  

• parent conference  

• disciplinary reassignment (short term)  

• modification of schedule and/or privileges  

• suspension  

• home-based instruction 
  
C) Acts of Misconduct: Group III - Disruptive Behavior 
  
Group III include those student behaviors which seriously disrupt the orderly educational process in the 
classroom and/or the school. These include, but are not limited to, such behaviors as:  
 

• any chronic disciplinary infraction as defined in Group II  

• fighting which is defined as a physical conflict between two or more students  

• gambling which is defined as participating in games of chance for money and/or other things of 
value  

• display of nude or obscene pictures or being in possession of adult literature or magazines.  

• stealing which is defined as the act of taking and carrying away the personal property of another 
without the consent of the owner, including school property  

• slander and/or defamation of character  

• use of profane, obscene, immoral or offensive language and/or gestures directed at other 
individuals and especially school personnel  

• persisting in serious acts of disobedience or disorderly behavior which may prove detrimental to 
the school, harmful to health and safety, and inhibiting the rights of others  

• possession of fireworks  

• harassment/intimidation/bullying of students or school employees  

• any type of interference with the educational process and/or the operation of school or 
interference with any school personnel's responsibilities and duties.  

 
Penalties: Disciplinary actions consistent with Group III infractions include, but are not limited to:  
 

• administrator/teacher/parent conference  

• administrator/student/parent conference (Possible restorative justice parent mtg.) 

• disciplinary reassignment (short term)  

• restitution or restoration, as applicable  

• detention(s)  

• home-based instruction (six days or less)  

• modification of schedule and/or privileges  

• suspension   

• referral to legal authorities/law enforcement agencies  



 
 

27 
 

• disciplinary reassignment (long term)  

• expulsion 
  
D) Acts of Misconduct: Group IV - Serious Discipline Infraction  
 
Group IV acts of misconduct include those serious misbehaviors which threaten to impair the 
educational efficiency of the school, seriously disrupt the orderly educational process in the classroom 
and/or the school, and for which there are no reasonable alternative discipline management techniques 
other than those specified. Included, but not limited to, are such behaviors as:  
 

• arson which is defined as the willful or malicious burning of a building or its contents and/or the 
personal property of others  

• assault which is defined as an offer or attempt to do bodily harm to another without physical 
contact. This includes threats and verbal assaults.  

• assault and battery which is defined as a physical contact with another without that person's 
consent  

• aggravated assault which is defined as assault with a deadly weapon  

• robbery which is defined as the taking of personal property in the possession of another against 
his/her will, accomplished by means of force or fear  

• burglary of a District facility  

• sex violations that are defined to include offenses against chastity, common decency, morals, 
sexual harassment and the like, indecent exposure is included here  

• extortion which is defined as obtaining money or information from another by coercion or 
intimidation  

• vandalism, which is defined as the willful or malicious destruction of school property or the 
property of others  

• any assault or battery on school district personnel (expulsion)  

• possession, use, and/or concealment of a weapon. A weapon is any instrument, which may 
produce bodily harm or death. Weapons include, but are not limited to, any knife, firearm, air 
gun, screwdriver, home-made weapon, fireworks, throwing instrument, firearm ammunition, or 
any other device which may produce bodily harm or death.  

• possession, and/or use of narcotics, dangerous drugs, or alcohol as outlined in Board Policy.  

• prohibited items are not allowed on school premises including vehicles in parking lots, city 
streets, private parking lots, or other areas not so designated while in attendance at school or 
school sponsored functions.  

 
Penalties: Disciplinary actions consistent with Group IV infractions include, but are not limited to:  
 

• referral to the legal authorities for legal action as appropriate  

• modification of schedule and/or privileges  

• disciplinary reassignment (short term)  

• disciplinary reassignment (long term)  

• suspension  

• home-based instruction  

• expulsion  

• restitution or restoration, as applicable  
 
The following policy will be used to administer student discipline. 



 
 

28 
 

 
 
 
 
Please refer to Chewelah School District Policies for the following: 
Sexual Harassment – Policy 5011 
Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying – Policy 3207 
Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying procedure – Policy 3207P 
Student Discipline – Policy 3241P 
Excused and Unexcused Absences Procedure – Policy 3122P 
 
Policies are found on the Chewelah School District Web Site: 

• http://www.Chewelah.k12.wa.us 

• Our District drop down 

• CSD Policies and Procedures 
 
  



 
 

29 
 

Please sign below and return to the school. 
 
 
I have read and discussed the Student Handbook information with my student. 
 
Signed ___________________________________________________Date ____________________ 
 Parent/Guardian 
 
 
 
 
I understand I am responsible to follow the rules and policies listed in this handbook. 
 
Signed ___________________________________________________Date ____________________ 
 Student 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 














































































































































